

United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

Vol. 23

February 7, 1975

No. 3

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

	<u>Page</u>
SOCIAL SECURITY ACT Tenth Circuit Accepts Govern- ment Position That Denial Of Reopening Of Social Security Decision Is Not Subject To Judicial Review	<u>Raymond A. Neighbors v. Secretary of Health, Ed- ucation and Welfare</u> 93
CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION POLICE BRUTALITY Fifth Circuit Holds The Right Not To Be Treated With Unrea- sonable, Unnecessary or Un- provoked Force While In Cus- tody Of Law Enforcement Officers, And Further Defines "Willful" Under 18 U.S.C. Section 242	<u>U.S. v. Stokes</u> 94
CRIMINAL DIVISION CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT- LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSE Defendant Cannot Be Sentenced Both For Unlawful Distribution And For Lesser Included Offense Of Unlawful Possession	<u>U.S. v. Mike Howard</u> 96
LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION MINES AND MINERALS: JURISDICTION: EVIDENCE U.S. Has Option To Challenge Good Faith Of Mining Claim Either In Court Under 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1345, Or Administratively; Doctrine Of Abstention Inappli- cable Under These Circumstances; After Government Makes A <u>Prima Facie</u> Case, Burden Of Proof Shifts To Mining Claimant	<u>U.S. v. Zweifel</u> 97
ENVIRONMENT CLEAN AIR ACT	<u>South Terminal Corp., et al. v. EPA</u> 98
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL; ATOMIC ENERGY EPA's Duty To Control Dis- charges Of All "Radioac- tive Materials; Federal	

Water Pollution Control Act
Amendments Of 1972; "Citizens
Suits" To Enforce Nondiscre-
tionary Duties Under 1972
Amendments

Colorado Public Interest Research
Group, Inc., et al. v. Train, et
al. 99

Page

INDIANS

Indian Self-Government Over
Tribal Fishing Off Reser-
vation; Tribal Power To
Arrest Indian At Off-
Reservation Fishing Ground
Retained For Tribal Use By
1855 Treaty With Yakimas;
Indian Bill Of Rights, 25
U.S.C. 1301, Et Seq.; Right
To Counsel And Double
Jeopardy In Tribal Court Settler v. Lameer, et al. 100

CIVIL PROCEDURE

Power of District Court To
Set Aside Jury Verdict On
Simple Fact Question U.S. v. 219.23 Acres of Land in
Riverside County, California, et
al. 102

RECLAMATION

The Small Reclamation Pro-
jects Act Of 1956; Scope
Of Permissible Projects;
Scope Of Secretary Of In-
terior Review And Parti-
cipation; Application of
NEPA Molokai Homesteaders Coop. v.
Morton 103

APPENDIX

FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

RULE 5(a) Initial Appearance
Before The Magistrate.
In General.

RULE 54(a) Application and
Exception. Courts.

U.S. v. Robert A. Leeds 105

	<u>Page</u>
RULE 6(a), (g) The Grand Jury. Summoning Grand Juries. Discharge and Excuse.	
RULE 12(b)(2) Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objec- tions. The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections. Defenses and Objections Which Must Be Raised.	<u>U.S. v. Bernhard Fein</u> 107
RULE 6(e) The Grand Jury. Secrecy of Proceedings and Disclosure.	
RULE 16(a)(1), (b) Discovery and Inspection. De- fendant's Statements. Other Books, Papers, Documents, Tangible Objects or Places.	<u>U.S. v. Roy Francis Perkins, Jr.</u> 109
RULE 6(g) The Grand Jury. Discharge and Excuse.	111
RULE 11 Pleas.	<u>Joseph V. Malinauskas v. U.S.</u> 113
RULE 12(b)(2) Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objec- tions. The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections. Defenses and Objections Which Must Be Raised.	<u>U.S. v. William James Henry</u> 115
RULE 14 Relief from Prejudicial Joinder.	<u>U.S. v. Helmer J. Olson</u> 117
RULE 16(a)(1) Discovery and Inspection. Defen-	

	<u>Page</u>
dant's Statements.	119
RULE 16(b) Discovery and In- spection. Other Books, Papers, Documents, Tangible Objects or Places.	<u>U.S. v. Peter P. Liebert, III</u> 121
RULE 21(a) Transfer from the District for Trial. For Prejudice in the District.	<u>U.S. v. Abbott Laboratories,</u> <u>et al.</u> 123
RULE 29 Motion for Judgement of Acquittal.	<u>U.S. v. Juan Antonio Suarez</u> 125
RULE 35 Correction or Reduction of Sentence	
RULE 36 Clerical Mistakes	<u>U.S. v. Rocco Salvatore Lupion</u> 127
RULE 36 Clerical Mistakes	<u>U.S. v. Rocco Salvatore Lupion</u> 129
RULE 46(g) Release from Custody. Supervision of Detention Pending Trial	<u>U.S. v. William H. Calloway</u> 131
RULE 52(b) Harmless Error and Plain Error. Plain Error	<u>U.S. v. Lawrence Charles King</u> 133

RULE 54(a) Application and
Exception. Courts

U.S. v. Robert A. Leeds

135

LEGISLATIVE NOTES

L1

COMMENDATION

Assistant United States Attorney Paul R. Thomson, Jr., Western District of Virginia, has been commended by Special Agent In Charge Richard D. Rogge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Richmond, Virginia, for his diligent prosecution of a recent gambling case, United States v. Thomas Jefferson Rogers, Jr., aka; Et AL; IGB.

COMMENDATION

Assistant United States Attorney Robert Trevey, Eastern District of Kentucky, has been commended by Colonel Scott B. Smith, Corps of Engineers, District Engineer, Department of the Army, Huntington, West Virginia, for the exceptional quality of legal services rendered in the trial of the Committee of Paint Creek v. United States Army Corps of Engineers, a land condemnation hearing.

POINTS TO REMEMBERERRATA

Bulletin, Vol. 22, No. 8, p. 240, first paragraph should read: "Pursuant to Order No. 544-73, dated October 26, 1973 (78 C.F.R. 50.10), concerning, inter alia, subpoenas issued to members of the news media, it should be noted that the order applies to cases where the member of the news media is agreeable to turning over the requested material but nevertheless specifically requests the issuance of a subpoena for his own purposes."

*

*

*

Bulletin, Vol. 22, No. 11, p. 365, second to last sentence should read: "The Court further held that, prior to the expiration of its 18-month life, this Rule 6 Special Grand Jury had not been converted into a Section 3331 or 3332(b) Special Grand Jury since no determination had been made as to volume of business -- but continued to function as a de facto Grand Jury beyond its term."

*

*

*

Bulletin, Vol. 22, No. 24, p. 899, last sentence of first paragraph should read: "Additionally, the court found a denial of equal protection in Cleveland because Federal law, 18 U.S.C. 113(c), requires proof of intent to do bodily harm and Arizona law does not."

*

*

*

(Criminal Division)

ANTITRUST DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

COURT OF APPEALSCRIMINAL CONTEMPT FOR VIOLATION OF JUDGMENT

CRIMINAL CONTEMPT CONVICTION AFFIRMED BY CIRCUIT COURT.

United States and Interstate Commerce Commission v. The Greyhound Corp. and Greyhound Lines, Inc., (C.A. 7, No. 74-1124; December 24, 1974; DJ 59-12-1600)

On December 24, 1974, the Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit affirmed the criminal contempt conviction under 18 U.S.C. 401(3) of The Greyhound Corp. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Greyhound Lines, Inc. (collectively Greyhound), for willful violation of 5 paragraphs of an order entered by a three judge district court.

Between 1947 and 1956, Greyhound sought and obtained the approval of the Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC) for the acquisition of eight bus companies and their routes in the western United States. At hearings before the ICC, Mt. Hood Stages, Inc. (Mt. Hood) opposed several of the acquisitions, arguing that its north-south route through central Oregon was being completely encircled by Greyhound. To overcome this opposition, Greyhound made specific representations to the ICC, which amounted to assurances of public benefit and interest and no harm to existing carriers and service.

In 1964, Mt. Hood petitioned the ICC, alleging that Greyhound had violated the representations and assurances it made in the prior acquisition proceedings. After finding that Mt. Hood's charges were substantiated, the Commission entered a supplemental order directing Greyhound to cease and desist from conduct inconsistent with its prior representations. A three judge district court denied Greyhound's motion to set aside the ICC order and granted the Government's counterclaim for enforcement. The court issued a ten paragraph injunction, providing in substance

that Greyhound honor its committment and cease discriminating against Mount Hood. Five paragraphs are relevant here:

- (1) that Greyhound show Mt. Hood schedules in Greyhound folders on an equal basis with other non-Greyhound lines;

* * *

- (3) that Greyhound revise its interline schedules in connection with Mt. Hood so as to eliminate the presently existing delay of approximately three hours for passengers seeking to travel between California and Spokane via Mt. Hood's route and to negotiate in good faith with Mt. Hood on the establishment of bus schedules most advantageous to the traveling public;
- (4) that Greyhound voluntarily and accurately quote joint through routes in connection with Mt. Hood, without geographical limitations in a manner fully responsive to inquiries from the traveling public;
- (5) that Greyhound cease and desist from quoting Mt. Hood's service unfavorably or inaccurately in response to inquiries from the traveling public and from not quoting Mt. Hood's service at all in response to specific requests from the traveling public;
- (6) that Greyhound show Mt. Hood's connecting routes on its maps on an equal basis with other non-Greyhound carriers;

* * *

The Government, in June 1971, filed petitions charging Greyhound with criminal and civil contempt for violating the three judge district court order. After trial, Chief

Judge Robson of the Northern District of Illinois found Greyhound in criminal contempt of 5 paragraphs of the injunction, and in civil contempt of 3 paragraphs. The court imposed fines aggregating \$600,000 for criminal contempt.

Greyhound appealed only the criminal contempt conviction. In effect, it admitted that it violated the 1970 order, but argued that the evidence was insufficient to prove that the violations were willful.

A unanimous court of appeals affirmed. Adopting the willfulness standard of United States v. Seale, 461 F.2d 345, 368 (C.A. 7, 1972), the court defined the minimum requisite intent for criminal contempt as "a volitional act done by one who knows or should reasonably be aware that his conduct is wrongful." In determining whether violations of an injunction are willful, the court explained, it is proper to "consider the entire background behind the order - including the conduct that the order was meant to enjoin or secure, the interests that it was trying to protect, the manner in which it was trying to protect them, and any past violations and warnings." Willfulness, the court said, does not exist where there is good faith pursuit of a plausible though mistaken interpretation of the order.

Turning to the specific provisions of the injunction, the court found that the evidence was more than sufficient to support the trial judge's finding that Greyhound willfully violated paragraph 1. The court noted the unreasonable delay in showing Mt. Hood schedules in Greyhound folders. Greyhound's attempts to excuse its noncompliance with paragraph 1, the court observed, were based upon "strained and twisted interpretations of the order." Given the purpose of the injunction, to stop Greyhound's predatory conduct towards Mt. Hood, the Court felt that these interpretations were "patently unreasonable." The court also considered Greyhound's failure to seek a clarification or modification of the order, and the numerous complaints about schedules that Mt. Hood made to Greyhound.

Greyhound willfully violated both requirements of paragraph 3 of the injunction, the court of appeals found. Since Mt. Hood's Klamath Falls - Biggs route is bounded at

both ends by Greyhound, the court reasoned that elimination of the existing three hour delay in connections was wholly within Greyhound's control. The court noted Greyhound's failure to seek a modification of the injunction and its unreasonable delay before making the changes ordered. To Greyhound's claim that it complied with paragraph 3 by shifting the 3 hour delay from Klamath Falls to Biggs, the court replied, "[w]e agree with the Government that it is difficult to conceive of a more tortured reading of the injunction or of an interpretation further at odds with the purpose and history of the order."

Further, the court found that Greyhound willfully failed to negotiate in good faith with Mt. Hood for the establishment of bus schedules most advantageous to the traveling public. Agreeing with the trial judge, the court of appeals stated that the obligation "to negotiate in good faith, while not including the duty to agree, does require an active participation in the deliberations, a sincere effort to overcome obstacles or differences between the parties, and a duty to respond to a good faith proposal put forth by the other party."

The court affirmed the trial judge's finding that Greyhound willfully violated paragraphs 4 and 5, by failing voluntarily and accurately to quote Mt. Hood service where it "would have been shorter, faster, cheaper, and/or more convenient than the best all-Greyhound routing." Although the standard for judging Greyhound's quoting performance was not specified in the order, the court said "[t]he mere fact that such an interpretation is necessary does not render the injunction . . . vague or ambiguous." The court again looked to the history and purpose of the order. Willfulness, the court recognized, could be inferred from the "literally hundreds of instances of unsatisfactory quotations" and "the wholly inadequate steps Greyhound took to achieve compliance on the part of its ticket agents."

The evidence is more than sufficient, the court ruled, to support the trial judge's finding that Greyhound willfully violated paragraph 6, by failing to show Mt. Hood's connecting routes on its maps on an equal basis with other non-Greyhound lines. Willfulness, the court said, could

be inferred from Greyhound's unreasonable delay in making the required changes, Mt. Hood's complaints to Greyhound about the maps, and Greyhound's failure to seek a modification or clarification of the injunction. Again the court rejected Greyhound's "strained interpretation of the order," citing the history and purpose of the injunction.

Finally, the court found no abuse of discretion by the trial judge in the amount of the \$600,000 fine.

Staff: Richard Sayler, Lee I. Weintraub, Joel Davidow

*

*

*

NOTICE

AMENDMENT OF TITLE 28, UNITED STATES CODE, WITH
RESPECT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW OF DECISIONS OF THE
INTERSTATE COMMERCE COMMISSION

On January 4, 1975, the President signed into law P.L. 93-584, which transfers review of Interstate Commerce Commission rules, regulations, or orders from three judge district courts to the courts of appeals as provided in the Judicial Review Act of 1950 (28 U.S.C. 2341 et seq.).

The former three judge district court procedure set forth in the Urgent Deficiencies Act of 1913 (28 U.S.C. 1336, 2321-2325) is repealed. Under the old procedure a suit to enjoin an order of the ICC had to be filed in the district court in which the plaintiff resides or has its principal office, and had to be heard by a panel of three judges, one of whom had to be a judge of the court of appeals. Appeals were taken directly to the Supreme Court as a matter of right.

The new procedure becomes effective March 1, 1975. Thereafter:

1. Civil actions to enjoin Commission orders may no longer be filed in the district courts. Instead petitions for review must be filed in the courts of appeals, which will have exclusive jurisdiction to enjoin, set aside, suspend (in whole or in part), or to determine the validity of all rules, regulations, or final orders of the ICC (28 U.S.C. 2342), other than orders for the payment of money. The new statute amends 28 U.S.C. 1336(a) so that the latter continue to be reviewable on complaint before a single district judge.
2. Petitions for review will have to be filed within 60 days after the agency's final order.
3. The procedure in the court of appeals will be governed by F.F. App. P. 15 -- 20.
4. It will be the Commission's duty to file the record in the court of appeals.

5. Multiple venue of suits challenging the same ICC order will be eliminated. Formerly a single ICC order could be attacked in different districts by different parties. Under the new procedure all petitions for review of an ICC order will be consolidated in the circuit in which the proceeding was first instituted. (28 U.S.C. 2112(a)). Venue lies in the judicial circuit in which the petitioner resides or has its principal office, or in the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. (28 U.S.C. 2343).

6. Review by the Supreme Court will be discretionary, by a petition for a writ of certiorari under 28 U.S.C. 1254, rather than by direct appeal as a matter of right.

7. Petitions for review in the court of appeals must name the United States as respondent (28 U.S.C. 2344). The Attorney General is responsible for and controls the interest of the Government, but the ICC may intervene and participate independently through all stages of judicial review. The court of appeals or a judge thereof has power to issue interlocutory orders to stay the effect of a challenged decision pending review on the merits. (F.R. App. P. 18).

8. Actions pending on March 1, 1975, will proceed to final disposition under the old procedure. (P.L. 93-584, Sec. 10).

Exclusive responsibility for representing the United States as respondent in the court of appeals is assigned to the Appellate Section of the Antitrust Division. Any papers served upon the United States Attorney in any district should be forwarded to that office immediately. Notice of applications to the courts of appeals or judges thereof for stays of Commission orders should be telephoned immediately to the office of the General Counsel, Interstate Commerce Commission.

CIVIL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Carla A. Hills

COURT OF APPEALS

DUE PROCESS

THE FIFTH CIRCUIT, EN BANC, HOLDS THAT A PROBATIONARY AIR FORCE OFFICER WHO IS DISCHARGED FOR IMPROPER CONDUCT HAS NO RIGHT TO A HEARING TO CONTEST THE DISMISSAL.

Sims v. Fox (C.A. 5, No. 73-2707: decided December 30, 1974; D.J. #145-14-854).

After the plaintiff, a probationary Air Force Reserve officer, had pleaded nolo contendere to acts of indecent exposure, the Air Force sought to discharge the plaintiff from the service. The plaintiff was permitted to respond in writing to the charges, but was not afforded an evidentiary hearing or an opportunity to make an oral presentation. When the plaintiff did not deny the alleged acts in his response, asking instead to be retained on the basis of his military record, the Air Force determined to dismiss him with an honorable discharge. The plaintiff brought this action to enjoin his discharge on the ground that he was entitled under the due process clause, to a prior evidentiary hearing. The district court dismissed the complaint.

In April, 1974, a panel of the Fifth Circuit unanimously reversed the district court, concluding, inter alia, that the plaintiff's reputation was implicated because the honorable discharge certificate contained a code, which indicated that the plaintiff was discharged for unsuitable conduct. On our petition for rehearing, the Fifth Circuit, en banc, (10-6) reversed the panel's decision and affirmed the dismissal of the complaint. The court of appeals pointed out that a subsequent change in Air Force Regulations eliminated the notation on the discharge certificate so that the plaintiff's reputation was not infringed by the dismissal. The court ruled that the presence of derogatory information in the files of the Air Force, if not communicated to the public, is not sufficient to infringe a "liberty" interest. The court held further that plaintiff had no "liberty" interest in a hearing because of his failure to deny the charges against him. The court ruled that the plaintiff had no "property" interest in continued employment since, by statute, he could be discharged at the pleasure of the President.

Staff: Thomas G. Wilson (Civil Division);
Assistant United States Attorney Earl W. Carson
(M.D. Ga.)

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT SPECIFICATION IN THE ACT OF WHICH PERSONS MUST BE CONSIDERED "RESPONSIBLY CONNECTED" WITH AN OFFENDING LICENSEE IS REBUTTABLE.

Carl Norman Quinn v. Earl L. Butz, Secretary of Agriculture, et al. (C.A.D.C., January 6, 1975; D.J. #107-16-4).

Under the Perishable Agricultural Commodities Act, 7 U.S.C. 499a et seq. (1970), the Secretary of Agriculture is empowered to suspend or revoke the licenses of dealers in perishable agricultural commodities who engage in unfair practices, and to limit employment within the industry of those persons who violate the Act and those persons who are "responsibly connected" with the violators. The Act, as amended in 1962, provides that one is "responsibly connected" with a licensee if one is affiliated with a licensee as "partner in a partnership" or "officer, director, or holder of more than 10 per centum of the outstanding stock of a corporation or association". 7 U.S.C. 499a(9). Prior to 1962, the term "responsibly connected" was not statutorily defined and the Secretary determined who came within its reach on an ad hoc basis.

Petitioner is the vice-president of the DeVita Fruit Company which was incorporated in 1964. The Secretary proposed to revoke DeVita's license to deal in perishable agricultural commodities for flagrant violations of the Act, and the company did not contest. Petitioner, however, endeavored to prove in the administrative proceedings that he was only nominally vice-president of the company and that in fact he was not "responsibly connected" with it. The Secretary declined to consider the proffer on the ground that it was irrelevant to the proceedings against the company and that, in any event, the Act, as amended in 1962, established a per se definition of "responsibly connected" which clearly covered petitioner. Accordingly, petitioner was notified that he would be subject to a limited employment ban in the industry. On petitioner's appeal the District of Columbia Circuit held that the Secretary's construction of the Act, though literally correct, permitted "unjust or absurd consequences", and was not required by the legislative history. It ruled that the specifications in 7 U.S.C. 499a(9) were prima facie and rebuttable. It also questioned whether DeVita was a bona fide corporation. Accordingly, it remanded the case to the Secretary with instructions to consider petitioner's proffer and to examine the company's incorporation.

Staff: Neil Koslowe (Civil Division)

SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

TENTH CIRCUIT ACCEPTS GOVERNMENT POSITION THAT DENIAL OF REOPENING OF SOCIAL SECURITY DECISION IS NOT SUBJECT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW.

Raymond A. Neighbors v. Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare (C.A. 10, No. 74-1134, decided August 5, 1974 (publication authorized, December 30, 1974); D.J. 137-13-101).

Claimant filed an application for Social Security disability benefits in 1969, which was denied following a hearing before an administrative law judge. He did not file a timely petition for judicial review of this decision. In 1971, claimant filed a second application for disability benefits for the same period of alleged disability and proffered the same evidence proffered in support of his first application. This application was denied and the administrative law judge dismissed a request for a rehearing on the ground of res judicata.

Claimant sought judicial review under § 405(g) of the Social Security Act, alleging that the Secretary's refusal to re-open his case was arbitrary and capricious. The district court dismissed his suit, and the court of appeals affirmed. The Tenth Circuit held that it lacked jurisdiction to review the Secretary's denial of reopening. The Tenth Circuit based its ruling upon its earlier decision in Hobby v. Hodges, 215 F.2d 754 (C.A. 10, 1954), where the court had held that when a second application on the ground of res judicata is administratively dismissed without hearing, there is no "final order of the Secretary made after hearing" and hence no jurisdiction for judicial review under Section 405(g).

The Tenth Circuit's decision is consistent with two Ninth Circuit decisions, Stuckey v. Weinberger, 488 F.2d 904 (en banc, 1973) and Wallace v. Weinberger, 488 F.2d 606 (en banc, 1973), certiorari denied, ___ U.S. ___, No. 73-6135, May 28, 1974, but apparently contrary to decisions of the Second, Third and Sixth Circuits. E.g., Cappadora v. Celebrezze, 356 F.2d 1 (C.A. 2, 1966); Davis v. Richardson, 460 F.2d 772 (C.A. 3, 1972), and Maddox v. Richardson, 464 F.2d 614 (C.A. 6, 1972).

Staff: Eloise E. Davies (Civil Division)

CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General J. Stanley Pottinger

COURT OF APPEALS

POLICE BRUTALITY

FIFTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THE RIGHT TO LIBERTY INCLUDES THE RIGHT NOT TO BE TREATED WITH UNREASONABLE, UNNECESSARY OR UNPROVOKED FORCE WHILE IN CUSTODY OF LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS, AND FURTHER DEFINES "WILLFUL" UNDER 18 U.S.C. SECTION 242.

United States v. Stokes (5th Cir., No. 74-1315, January 20, 1975, D.J. No. 144-19M-988)

On July 10, 1973, the defendant, a police officer of the Macon, Georgia, Police Department arrested John Velpo Tucker for being "plain drunk." Tucker was verbally abusive when arrested, but never offered any physical resistance to arrest. Upon arrival at the police station, the defendant administered a beating to Tucker which caused him to enter a coma from which he had not recovered when the case came to trial six months later. Defendant was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C. Section 242 which prohibits willful deprivations of constitutional rights by persons acting under color of law.

On appeal, the defendant complained of the trial court's instruction to the jury that a police officer's unlawful assault of a prisoner in his custody is, under the Fourteenth Amendment, a deprivation of liberty without due process. The Court of Appeals rejected the defendant's contention that the only right to due process which Tucker had was the right not to be "summarily punished."

The Court held that Screws v. United States, 325 U.S. 91 (1945), which made reference to the prohibition against "summary punishment" as an example of a due process right, did not mean that the right to trial by law was the only due process right protected under Section 242. As the Court of Appeals noted, such a limited view of the constitutional protection afforded under Section 242 would suggest:

".....that state officials can remove any beating of a prisoner, however brutal, from the realm of constitutional violation merely by bringing the prisoner to trial"

While noting that the criminal liabilities of Section 242 could only attach to interference with rights which had been "made specific by express terms of the Constitution or laws of the United States or by decision interpreting them," Screws, supra, 325 U.S. at 104, the Court cited case law from which it concluded:

".....the constitutional right to due process of law includes not only the right to be tried in a court of law for alleged offenses against the state, but also a right not to be treated with unreasonable, unnecessary, or unprovoked force by those charged by the state with

the duty of keeping accused and convicted offenders in custody

Additionally, the Court found that Screws does not "mandate a ritualistic charge" when instructing on the element of willfulness under Section 242. An instruction which defined willfulness as: ".....the specific intent to do something the law forbids", and said that specific intent under Section 242 ".....is the intent to deprive a person of a constitutional right" was upheld.

Staff: John F. Conroy
Trial Attorney
Civil Rights Division

*

*

*

CRIMINAL DIVISION

Acting Assistant Attorney General John C. Keeney

COURT OF APPEALSCONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT - LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSE

DEFENDANT CANNOT BE SENTENCED BOTH FOR UNLAWFUL DISTRIBUTION AND FOR LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSE OF UNLAWFUL POSSESSION.

United States v. Mike Howard, --F.2d-- (8th Cir. December 13, 1974).

Mike Howard was tried for distributing heroin, in violation of 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1). The District Court charged the jury that, if they found Howard unlawfully possessed the heroin but did not intend to distribute it, they could find him guilty of the lesser included offense of simple possession (21 U.S.C. 844(a)). The jury then returned a verdict in which they found Howard guilty of both distribution and simple possession. A poll of the jury revealed that they had intended to find Howard guilty only of distribution. The Court then indicated that it would treat the simple possession conviction as surplusage. Thereafter, Howard was sentenced both for unlawful distribution and unlawful possession, the sentences to run concurrently. On appeal, Howard contended that the District Court had erred in accepting the jury's verdict. He also maintained that he should have been sentenced only on the unlawful possession conviction.

The Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals held that Howard could not properly be convicted of both unlawful distribution and unlawful possession since a defendant may not be convicted of both a major offense and a lesser included offense arising out of the same facts. The Court noted that, in a situation such as this, the jury should have been instructed to return to the jury room to correct the verdict. However, the District Court's failure to do this was not considered reversible error since Howard made no request for reconsideration of the verdict. Observing that the jury poll clearly indicated that Howard had been convicted of unlawful distribution, the Court affirmed his conviction on that charge. Treating the unlawful possession part of the verdict as surplusage, the Court reversed Howard's conviction on that charge.

Staff: United States Attorney
Bert C. Hurn

Assistant United States Attorney
Mary A. Schneider
(W.D. Missouri)

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Wallace H. Johnson

COURTS OF APPEALS

MINES AND MINERALS; JURISDICTION; EVIDENCE

UNITED STATES HAS OPTION TO CHALLENGE GOOD FAITH OF MINING CLAIM EITHER IN COURT UNDER 28 U.S.C. SEC. 1345, OR ADMINISTRATIVELY; DOCTRINE OF ABSTENTION INAPPLICABLE UNDER THESE CIRCUMSTANCES; AFTER GOVERNMENT MAKES A PRIMA FACIE CASE, BURDEN OF PROOF SHIFTS TO MINING CLAIMANT.

United States v. Zweifel (C.A. 10, No. 74-1087, Jan. 14, 1975; D.J. 90-1-18-933).

The United States filed suit under 28 U.S.C. sec. 1345 to quiet title to large tracts of public land in Wyoming upon which Zweifel's claim-staking service, on behalf of some 267 claimants, had filed mining claim certificates. The Government's witnesses testified that they had observed no mineral discovery, production activity, posts, stakes or location notices. State officials testified that there was no record of mineral production, nor were there any applications for mining or development work. The district court invalidated the claims and quieted title to the lands in the United States. On appeal, appellants challenged the district court's jurisdiction, arguing that Interior has exclusive jurisdiction over actions brought by the Government to invalidate unpatented mining claims.

The Tenth Circuit affirmed in a comprehensive opinion, holding:

1. The United States may, at its election, proceed administratively in Interior, or under 28 U.S.C. sec. 1345 in district court, clear title to public lands where the validity of unpatented claims is at issue. Best v. Humboldt Placer Mining Co., 371 U.S. 334, which held that even though the United States had possession of land through condemnation, it could proceed administratively to determine the validity of mining claims thereon; it cannot be read to limit federal court jurisdiction over civil suits initiated by the Government.

2. The district court did not err by declining to defer to Interior for an administrative determination of the

validity of the Zweifel claims. First, Interior's conclusion that failure after several years to attempt little or no development or operations raises a presumption that claimants have not made a discovery. Second, the district court's conclusion that Zweifel did not locate the claims in good faith for mining purposes did not involve the type of factual inquiry to which courts should defer to Interior because of its expertise.

3. Following the Ninth and District of Columbia Circuits, the court adopted the rule that, in an action to contest mining claims, the Government bears the initial burden of establishing a prima facie case, and thereafter the burden shifts to the claimant.

Staff: Jacques B. Gelin (Land and Natural Resources Division); Terrence L. O'Brien (formerly of the Land and Natural Resources Division); United States Attorney Richard V. Thomas (D. Wyo.).

ENVIRONMENT

CLEAN AIR ACT.

South Terminal Corp., et al. v. EPA (C.A. 1, Nos. 73-1366 and 1382-1389, Sept. 27, 1974; D.J. 90-5-2-3-170).

On petition to review the Metropolitan Boston Air Quality Transportation Control Plan prepared pursuant to the Clean Air Act, the court accepted the Government's views on the law, but found EPA's data base to be too small. A hearing on, and amplification of, data were ordered. The legal positions affirmed include the limited scope of review, the propriety of indirect source controls, the propriety of modelling and the rollback model chosen, the propriety of non-uniform controls, i.e., requiring greater clean-up in some areas but not others, and the constitutionality of both the Act and the controls adopted.

Staff: Carl Strass (Land and Natural Resources Division); William F. Pedersen (Environmental Protection Agency).

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL; ATOMIC ENERGY; EPA'S DUTY TO CONTROL DISCHARGES OF ALL "RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS" INCLUDING AEC-LICENSED MATERIALS; FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT AMENDMENTS OF 1972; "CITIZENS SUITS" TO ENFORCE NONDISCRETIONARY DUTIES UNDER 1972 AMENDMENTS.

Colorado Public Interest Research Group, Inc., et al. v. Train, et al. (C.A. 10, No. 74-1154, Dec. 9, 1974; D.J. 90-5-1-4-27).

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 added a new Section 502(6) (33 U.S.C. sec. 1362(6)) which included "radioactive materials * * * discharged into water" as part of the definition of a "pollutant" under the control of the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

EPA adopted a regulation, 40 C.F.R. sec. 125.1(x), supplemented by a "comment" disclaiming EPA's control over the discharge of such "radioactive materials" already licensed or regulated by the Atomic Energy Commission pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 as amended. EPA's disclaimer, relying on specified parts of the legislative history of the FWPCA Amendments of 1972, would have narrowed EPA's enforcement jurisdiction to radium and accelerator-produced isotopes.

Various plaintiffs brought a "citizens suit" in federal district court, pursuant to Section 505 as added by the 1972 Amendments (33 U.S.C. sec. 1365), alleging that EPA had a nondiscretionary duty to control discharges of all "radioactive materials" including those licensed by AEC. The district court, by summary judgment, dismissed the "citizens suit," 373 F.Supp. 991.

On appeal, the court of appeals reversed and remanded, and held that the 1972 Amendments to FWPCA required EPA to control discharges of AEC-licensed materials, and that, because the statutory term "radioactive materials" is plain, unrestricted, and unambiguous, recourse to legislative history was unnecessary.

The court distinguished Northern States Power Company v. State of Minnesota, 447 F.2d 1143 (C.A. 8, 1971), aff'd, 405 U.S. 1035, as standing merely

* * * for the proposition that Congress in enacting the Atomic Energy Act of 1954

preempted the field to the exclusion of the several states as concerns the regulation of radioactive waste releases from nuclear power plants. Assuming the correctness of this proposition, such does not mean that Congress is thereafter foreclosed from later deciding, as we believe it did, to vest the Environmental Protection Agency with the duty of regulating the discharge of all radioactive materials into navigable waters.

Staff: Michael D. Graves, Dirk D. Snel (Land and Natural Resources Division); Former Assistant United States Attorney William K. Hickey (D. Colo.).

INDIANS

INDIAN SELF-GOVERNMENT OVER TRIBAL FISHING OFF RESERVATION; TRIBAL POWER TO ARREST INDIAN AT OFF-RESERVATION FISHING GROUND RETAINED FOR TRIBAL USE BY 1855 TREATY WITH YAKIMAS; INDIAN BILL OF RIGHTS, 25 U.S.C. 1301, ET SEQ.; RIGHT TO COUNSEL AND DOUBLE JEOPARDY IN TRIBAL COURT.

Settler v. Lameer, et al. (C.A. 9, Nos. 71-2364, 74-1627, 74-1656, Nov. 26, 1974; D.J. 90-2-0-677). On stipulated facts, the Ninth Circuit has broadly interpreted tribal self-government retained by the Yakima Indian Nation over off-reservation fishing by its members.

By the 1855 Treaty with the Yakimas, the tribe retained, inter alia, the "right of taking fish at all usual and accustomed places" within the State of Washington but outside the boundaries of the Yakima reservation. In the late 1960's, the Yakima Tribal Council adopted regulations which controlled fishing by Yakima Indians at off-reservation fishing grounds encompassed by the 1855 Treaty, and which authorized any tribal peace officer, "where violations are committed in his presence," to arrest Yakima offenders at treaty-fishing grounds outside the reservation.

Two Yakima Indians were convicted in Yakima Tribal Court for tribal fishing violations outside the reservation

at treaty fishing grounds. They challenged their convictions in federal district court by petitioning for habeas corpus pursuant to Section 203 of the Indian Bill of Rights, 82 Stat. 78, 25 U.S.C. sec. 1303.

The district court upheld the tribal convictions growing out of off-reservation fishing violations where the violator was later found within the Yakima Reservation and arrested there. Nevertheless, the district court set aside another tribal conviction in which the tribal arrest took place outside the reservation at a treaty-fishing ground.

On appeal, the court of appeals, by partial reversal, upheld all tribal convictions regardless of place of arrest. Said the court (Slip Opinion 12-13, 15):

* * *Having determined that the Yakima Nation by the Treaty of 1855 intended to retain not only their ancient fishing rights but also the power to regulate the exercise of those rights regardless of location, it would be inconsistent to narrowly limit the enforcement of those rights to arrest and seizure on the reservation. The power to regulate is only meaningful when combined with the power to enforce.

* * * * *

Our holding that the Yakima Indian Nation may enforce its fishing regulations by making arrests and seizures off the reservation is a very narrow one. Off-reservation enforcement is limited strictly to violations of tribal fishing regulations. The arrest and seizure of fishing gear must be made at "usual and accustomed places" of fishing, and only when violations are committed in the presence of the arresting officer. Tribal officers patrolling off-reservation sites are subject to all reasonable regulations that may be imposed by the State of Washington for the orderly conduct of inspections, arrests and seizures. [Footnotes omitted.]

The court further held that, with respect to a tribal conviction predating the 1968 enactment of the Indian Bill of Rights, 25 U.S.C. sec. 1301 et seq., the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments did not invalidate a tribal court rule excluding professional attorneys from practicing before it.

Finally, the court of appeals held that there was no double jeopardy, when the tribal court instantly vacated a conviction entered the same day in order to enable an immediate retrial and conviction the same day to "correct" allegations and testimony in the first trial.

In amici curiae briefs, the United States supported, and the State of Washington opposed, the position of the Yakima tribal officials.

Staff: United States Attorney Dean C. Smith
(E.D. Wash.); Dirk D. Snel (Land and
Natural Resources Division).

CIVIL PROCEDURE

POWER OF DISTRICT COURT TO SET ASIDE JURY VERDICT
ON SIMPLE FACT QUESTION.

United States v. 219.23 Acres of Land in Riverside
County, California, et al. (Erwin P. Werner) (C.A. 9,
No. 73-1251, Oct. 15, 1974; D.J. 33-5-1165-20).

In a dispute over lease valuation of desert land, the case turned on whether or not the land had development prospects in the near future. The jury twice accepted the Government's view. The district court twice rejected the verdict and ordered new trials. The Ninth Circuit, in an unreported one line opinion, omitting all the facts and discussion, simply upheld the district court. It is unlikely that a similar result would obtain in any other circuit. See, e.g., Fireman's Fund Insurance Co. v. Aalco Wrecking Co., Inc., 466 F.2d 179, 186-187 (C.A. 8, 1972).

Staff: Carl Strass and Max Findley (Land and
Natural Resources Division).

RECLAMATION

THE SMALL RECLAMATION PROJECTS ACT OF 1956; SCOPE OF PERMISSIBLE PROJECTS; SCOPE OF SECRETARY OF INTERIOR REVIEW AND PARTICIPATION; APPLICATION OF NEPA.

Molokai Homesteaders Coop. v. Morton (C.A. 9, No. 73-2934, Oct. 29, 1974; D.J. 90-1-4-637).

An irrigation project built under the Small Reclamation Project Act of 1956 (Molokai Irrigation System) contracted to transport water through its excess capacity, thereby connecting a hotel to some wells plaintiffs sued to prevent such transportation use of the facilities. The court of appeals held that a Small Reclamation Project need only be primarily for irrigation, and was not prohibited from secondary uses. The court also held that the Secretary of the Interior need not review or approve such a water transportation contract for a small project, though he might have to approve such a contract for a large project under general reclamation law.

Finally, the court of appeals held that NEPA did not apply since this was an on-going project, and the Federal Government's rights were merely to object to violations of the agreement. This right is not federal action, major or otherwise.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney
William C. McCorriston (D. Hawaii).

*

*

*